CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
5402 Holly Road, Suite 102 Corpus Christi, TX 78411 Office: (361) 980-0428 Fax: (361) 980-1002




Raul Hernandez & Company, P, C,
Certified Public Accountants
5402 Holly Road Suite 102
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411
Office (361)980-0428 Fax (361)980-1002

Member of the City Council
City of Falfurrias, Texas
Falfurrias, Texas 78355

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Falfurrias,
for the year ended December 31, 2018. Professional standards require that we provide you with
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing as well as certain
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit,

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by City of Falfurrias, are described in the notes to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was
not changed during December 31, 2018. We noted no transactions entered into by the
governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral parnt of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. There were no significant estimates
noted in the financial statements

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were

material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as
a whole.
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Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated June 23, 2021.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion™ on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consuitant has all the relevant facts. To our Knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship
and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intenced solely for the use by the Members of the City Council and management
of City of Falfurrias, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Very truly yours,

June 23, 2021
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In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Falfurrias, Texas, as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, we considered the City of Falfurrias, Texas' intemnal control over financial reporting (internal control) as
a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Faifurrias, Texas' internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Falfurrias, Texas’ internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in the internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a ¢control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the following deficiencies in internal
conirol to be material weaknesses:

Finding No. 2018-001

Criteria; All transaction types occurring in the course of business should be timely and coded
properly in the general ledger. Preparation of year-end adjusting journal entries,
reconciliations, reviews and other general ledger tests for reasonableness and agreement to
underlying journals, and third parties should be performed in readiness for the monthly
reports to the City Council, and preparation of the City’s annual financial statements.

Condition: The general ledger required many audit adjustments and reclassifications to both the
current and prior period balances. Preparation of the year-end adjusting joumal entries,
schedules, and reconciliation of several significant areas were not complete. This resulted
in additional time and effort on our part during the course of the audit. Finding is a repeat
from prior fiscal year.

Cause: The City has not established a formal policies and procedures over year-end closing and
monthly account analysis.

Effect: Management assessments and financial decisions, and intemal and external financial
reporting may be inaccurate because of an improperly maintained general ledger.

Context: During the course of the audit, there were various general ledger accounts that required
adjustments.



Finding No. 2018-001

Recommendation(s):

Management Response:

Finding No. 2018-002

Critena:

Condition:

Cause:

Effect:
Context:

Recommendation:

Management Response:

{continued)

The City should review their procedures for proper coding and timely recording of
transactions at the end of each month and at vear-end.

The City has hired a fee accountant CPA to help with the preparation of General Ledgers
and Bank Reconciliations. The City will review procedures for proper coding and timely
recording of transactions at the end of each month and at year-end.

The City is required to maintain policies and procedures to track an asset’s cost,
depreciation and the disposal of assets.

The City has not prepared written policies for accounting of fixed asset additions and
deletions. During the audit, we noted that the procedures to accurately account for current
vear additions and deletions were not adequate. We had to perform an extended analysis
of the detail ledgers searching for many fixed asset additions which management
inadvertently omitted. The fixed asset records were updated to account for these additions
during the audit.

Management did not exercise due care in accurately accounting for fixed assct additions
and deletions durning the fiscal vear.

Some capital assets may not be accurately identified and recorded.

Current year additions and deletions for fixed assets were not accounted for at year-end.
The City should develop fixed asset accounting policies and enhance its procedures to
accurately track current vear fixed asset additions and deletions. Management should
coordinate with the fixed asset management company to ensure that all current year

additions and deletions have been recorded on the City’s fixed asset records.

The City has hired a fee accountant CPA and will develop fixed asset accounting policies
and enhance procedures to accurately track current vear fixed asset additions and deletions.



Finding No. 2018-003

Criteria: Journal entries should be reviewed by someone other than the preparer.

Condition: In conducting the audit, we noted numerous posting errors. Significant quantities of audit
Journal entries were needed to correct posting errors. Finding is a repeat from prior fiscal
vear.

Cause: The policy implemented for the review of joumal entries was not followed.

Effect: The City understated and overstated multiple account balances. Reports provided to City
Council were inaccurate.

Context: During the course of the audit, there were various general ledger accounts that required
adjustments.

Recommendation: The City should follow its joumnal entry review policy and procedures. A responsible

official should review and approve all journal entrics posted to the ledgers.

Management Response: The City has hired a fee accountant CPA to help with the preparation of General Ledgers.
The City will review procedures for proper journal entry coding and timely recording of
transactions at the end of each month and at vear-end.

As required, we communicated the list of accumulated misstatements to management on a timely basis to provide
them with an opportunity to correct them. We performed additional audit procedures to determine that management
adjusted the financial statements so that the risk that the financial statements are materially misstated has been
reduced to an appropriate low level. After management made the corrections to the respective accounts, we
evaluaied management’'s work to determine whether the corrections have been recorded properly and whether
uncorrected misstatements remain.

We expanded our audit procedures to determine the extent of the issues identified and whether any material
misstatements of the financial statements existed whether due to fraud or error. We also performed the additicnal
audit procedures to determine that management adjusted the financial statements so that the risk of the financial
statements being materially misstated has been reduced to an appropriate low level.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Members of the City Council,
and others within the City of Falfurrias, Texas, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Corpus Christi, TX
June 23, 2021
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Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
5402 Holiy Rd, Suite 102
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411
Office (361)980-0482 Fax (361)980-1002

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the City Council
City of Falfurnas, Texas
Falfurrias, Texas 78353

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type acfivities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Falfurrias, Texas as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City
of Falfurrias, Texas’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City of Falfurrias, Texas’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Falfurrias, Texas’s internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Falfurrias, Texas as of December 31, 2018, and the respective changes

in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

1



Emphasis of Matter
Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2018, the City of Falfurrias, Texas adopted new accounting
guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, and budgetary comparison and schedule of the City of Falfurrias. Texas’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability and schedule of City of Falfurrias, Texas’s pension contributions, and schedule of the City of
Falfurrias, Texas's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability and schedule of City of Falfurnas, Texas’s OPEB
contributions identified as Required Supplementary Information in the table of contents be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Falfurrias, Texas's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial

statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 23, 2021, on our
consideration of the City of Falfurrias, Texas’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Falfurrias,
Texas’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Falfurrias, Texas’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

/?za/a;/m'm% & @wgaw%, ) 2154

Corpus Christi, Texas
June 23, 2021
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Our discussion and analysis of the City’s financial performance provides an overview of the City’s
financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018. Please read it in conjunction with the
City’s financial statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

o The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City’s Governmental Activities exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $3,595,700
(net position). Of this amount, $2,077,863 is net investment in capital assets; $835,945 is restricted
for external purposes with a remaining unrestricted net position totaling $681,892 which may be used
to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

» The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City’s business-type activities exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $13,586,547
(net position). Of this amount, $63,900 is restricted for debt service and $5,026,472 (unrestricted net
position) may be used to meet the water and sewer systems ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

« As of the close of the current fiscal year the City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending
fund balance of $1,383,933 of which $835,945 was restricted for external purposes leaving a total of
$547,988 in unassigned fund balance.

» At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund totaled $547,988
and external restrictions on fund balances amounted to $163,189.

» The City’s total net debt increased by $2,079,060 during the current fiscal year, which represents the
current year principal and capital lease payments of ($407,107), recognition of capital lease of
$2,431,000, decrease of pension obligations of ($177,343), recognition of compensated absences
totaling $117,389, and an increase in net OPEB liability of $115,121 due to GASB 75 implementation.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The basic financial statements consist of government-wide financial statements, fund financial

statements, and notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements.



CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Government-wide financial statements

The Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities are government-wide financial
statements. The government-wide financial statements provide information about the activities of the
City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City’s finances. These statements include all
assets and liabilities of the City, and the statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting,
which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies,

Activities of the City as a whole include governmental activities, and business-type activities.
Governmental activities are those activities which are financed primarily through taxes and grants.

Most of the City’s basic services are reported as governmental activities. Business-type activities are
those activities which are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges. Utility system operations are a common example of business-type activities. The
City has no component units. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the City
is financially accountable. Whenever a City is financially accountable for activities of a legally

separate organization, those activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
component unit activities.

The accrual basis of accounting used for the government-wide financial statements recognizes
revenues when earned and expenses when incurred regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Fund financial statements

Fund financial statements are used to present more detailed information about the City’s most
significant funds. Separate fund financial statements are prepared for the City’s governmental funds

and proprietary funds, as opposed to the government-wide statements which reflect the City as a
whole.

Fund financial statements are prepared using the measurement focus and basis of accounting
applicable to each broad fund category. Governmental fund financial statements are presented on a
spending or “financial flow” measurement focus using the modified accrual basis of accounting,.
Proprietary fund financial statements are presented on a cost of services or “capital maintenance”
measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. Because the proprietary fund financial
statements are presented using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting as the
government-wide financial statements, the totals from the proprietary fund financial staiements flow
directly into the business-type activities column of the government-wide financial statements. For the
governmental funds, reconciliation is presented to describe the differences between the net position,
and change in net position reported in the governmental fund financial statements and the net position,

and change in net position reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide
financial statements.

=




CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2018
Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a complete understanding of the
information provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Condensed Financial Information

Condensed financial information is presented in the following tables in a comparative format which
allows for the comparison of current and prior year information.

Government-wide net position

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Current and other assets $ 2,384,948 2,343,142 6,245,883 3,895,954 8,630,831 6,239,096
Restricted Assets - - 63,900 60,348 63,900 60,348
Capital assets 2,326,041 2,373,509 12,997,175 12,576,506 15,323,216 14,950,015

Total assels 4,710,989 4,716,631 19,306,958 16,532.808 24,017,947 21,249,459
Deferred Outflows of Resources 61,851 150,767 34,822 74.605 96,673 225,372
Tota! Assets and Deferred

outflows of resources § 4772840 S 4867418 S 19,341,780 § 16607413 § 24114620 _§ 21,474,831

Long-term liabilities 247,958 430,407 4,501,000 2,158,157 4,748,958 2,588,564
Other liabilitiss 608,167 620,162 1,220.178 660,331 1,828,345 1,280,493

Total liabilities 856,125 1,050,569 5,721,178 2,818,488 6,577,303 3.869,057
Deferred Inflows of Resources 321,015 478,820 34,055 14,733 355,070 493,553
Net position:

Invested in capital

assets, net of debt 2,077,863 1,888,225 8,496,175 10,336.506 10,574,038 12,224,731
Restricted 835,945 751,360 63,900 - 899,845 751,360
Unrestricted 681,892 698,444 5,026,472 3,437,686 5,708,364 4,136,130

Total net position $ 3,595,700 3,338,029 13,586,547 13,774,192 17,182,247 17,112,221
Total liabilties and

net position $ 4772840 5§ 4867418 5 19341,780 S 16607413 § 24114620 § 21,474,831

The City’s governmental activities showed a decrease in net position of (894,578). Unrestricted net
position is used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. External
restrictions on net position totaled $835,945 at year end.

The City’s business-type activities showed an increase in net position of $2,734,367, however,
unrestricted net position was $5,026,472

More detailed information relating to the change in net position, the change in capital assets, and the
change in long-term liabilities are discussed in the pages to follow.



CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

City of Falfurrias Changes in Revenues and Expenditures

Govemmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Priman Govermnment
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2007
Revenues
Programrevenues:
Charges for services $ 1,126,762 $ 1.197422 $§ 2,757,086 $ 2765370 $ 38B4 448 3 3,962,792
Operating grants and
contnbutions 224,081 136,346 4,500 - 228,581 156,346
Capital grants end
contributions - - - 771,507 - 771,507
General revenues:
Property Taxes 672,639 471,091 - - 672,639 471,081
Sales tax 759,337 686,499 - - 759,337 686,499
Franchise taxes 292 8i1 298,094 - - 202,811 258,094
Grants and Contributions 20,946 24,310
Investment Eamings 6,119 5375 17,381 16,160 23,500 21,535
Miscellaneous 104,170 105,629 45,869 38,042 150,039 143,671
Transfers In 623,332 309,376 - - 623,332 309,376
Total revenues $ 3,830,197 $ 3,254,142 $ 2825436 $ 3,591,079 $ 6634687 $ 6820911
Expenses
General Government 570,824 646,924 - - 570,824 646,924
Judical 261,627 288,099 - - 261,627 288,000
Public Safety 1,077,595 1,177,725 - - 1,077,595 1,177,725
Public Works 1,082,599 695,979 - - 1,082,599 693,979
Health and Welfare 58,187 15,569 - - 58,187 35,569
Culture and Recmzation 448,254 175,756 - - 448,254 175,756
Interest on Debt 10,667 16,715 - - 10,667 16,715
Utility System - - 2,359,386 2,434,534 - 2,434,534
Transfers Out - - 623,332 309.376 - 309,376
Totalexpenses $ 3,509,753 $ 3,036,767 $ 2982718 $ 2,743,910 $ 1,509,753 $ 5,780,677

Governmental Activities

Governmental Activities total revenues increased by $576,055 while total expenditures increased by
$472,986.

Business-Type Activities

Business-Type Activities total revenues decreased by ($765,643) while total expenditures increased
by $238,808
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital assets

The City of Falfurrias’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities
as of December 31, 2018, amounts to $15,323,216 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment
in capital assets includes land, buildings, and system improvements, and machinery and equipment.

The total net increase in the City’s investments in capital assets for the current year was $372,487.
City of ‘Falfurrias’s Capita] Assets
(Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 207
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 8 12200 S 12200 % 148222 8§ 148222 § 160422 § 160422
Construction in Progress 23,674 4,500 981,702 262913 1,005,376 267413
35874 16,700 1,129.924 411,135 1,165,798 427,835
Capita! assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 1.182.944 1,044,979 26259 26,259 1,209,203 1,071,238
Machinery and Equipment 1,743,497 1,887,365 2212599 1,905,514 3,956,096 3,792 879
Infrastructure 1,637,750 1,637,750 22,130,505 22,086,617 23,768,255 23,724,367
4,564,192 4,570,094 24369362 24,018390 28933554 28,588,484
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (591,908) (543.087) (19971) (19,073) (611,879 (562,160)
Machinery and Equipment (13463097  (1,418297) (1,578,648) (1,506,539) (2924957  (2924,836)
Infrastructure {335,808) (251,902) (10,203,492) (10,326,692) (112393000 (10,578,594)
Total accumulated depreciation (2,274,025) (2,213,286) (12,502,111) (11,852304y  (14,776.136)  (14,065,590)
Total capital assets, 2,290,167 2,356,808 11867251 12,166,086 14,157418 14,522, 854
being depreciated, net
Capita assets, net § 2326041 % 2373508 § 12997,175 8§ 12,577,221 § 15323216 § 14,950,729

Additional information on City of Falfurrias’s capital assets can be found in Note 6.

Long-Term Debt

At year end, the City had the following debt issues outstanding.

Governmenial Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Certificates of Oblgation £ 125000 $ 245000 § - 3 - % 125000 $ 245000
Capital Leases 122959 240284 2,431,000 - 2553959 240,284
Refunding Bonds - - 2,070,000 2 240,000 2070000 2,240,000
Total debt $ 247959 $ 485281 5 4,501,000 $ 2240000 S 4748939 § 2,725284

Additional information on the City of Falfurrias’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7.



CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Economic Factors

The adopted budget for 2019 sets general fund revenues from all sources (including interfund
transfers) at $3,098,990. This budget is $82,000, or .02% more than the prior year’s final budget The

most significant increase in reveneus from 2018 to 2019 is due to a $132,000 increase in Utility Board
Operating Fee.

Budget Overview

Property tax revenue budgeted in 2019 reamined the same compared to the prior year’s budget. With
a slight increase in assessed valuations for the 2018 tax year compared to 2017 (the 2017 tax year
revneues are deferred to the City’s 2018 fiscal year, and the 2018 tax year revenues are deferred to the
City’s 2019 fiscal year), coupled with a stable property tax rate to $0.474807, the total 2019 revenue
forecast was conservatively cast by management. City sales tax, which comprised 23.2% of general
fund revenues for 2018, remained forcast at $700,000, which is stightly lower than the 2018 actual
sales tax revenue of $759,337. The franchise tax fee categories remained budgeted at $206,000, which
was also slightly lower than the $218,565 of 2018’s actual franchise taxes.

General Fund expenditures, including transfers for the 2019 budget, were set at $3,155,575, which is
less than the $3,483,370, or 0.9% less than the prior year budget. Decreases in the budgeted
expenditures for administration of $106,625 and public works of $131,990 comprise the majority of
the decrease in total expenditures from the prior budget. If the budgeted revenues and expenses are
achieved, the fund balance will be reduced by $56,583, as the budgeted $3,098,990 in revenue is
slightly less than the budgeted expenditures of $3,155,575.

General Discussion

The City’s fiscal condition contintues to be stable due, in part, to consistent growth of the City’s
property taxes.

Other revenues continue to grow and are required to keep pace with general and specific inflation and
to offset scheudled and discretionary employee compensation increases, employee professional,
technical and safety training; street reconstruction and repairs; facility and office upgrades; equipment
replacements; and various electronic and communication technologies. City staff must also keep a
watchful eye on the cost of unfunded mandates imposed on citites by governmental and requlartory
agencies.

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, please direct
your requests to the Office of the City Administrator, P.O. Drawer E, Falfurrias, Texas 78355.
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31,2018

Primary Govemment

EXHIBIT A-1

Data .
Business -
RIS Governmental Type
S Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents ] 1,144,830 31,377,311 4,522,141
1030 Investments - Current 630,642 - 630,642
1050 Taxes Receivable, Net 367,000 - 367,000
1150 Accounts Receivable, Net 125,743 426,371 552,114
1152 Other Receivables 121,850 - 121,850
1300 Due from Other Funds (33,796) 35,796 -
1390 Due from Others 30,679 2,315,242 2,345,921
1410 Inventories - 91,163 91,163
1611 Restricted - Cash and Cash Equivalents - 63,900 63,900
Capital Assets:
1760  Capital Assets, Net 2,326,041 12,997,175 15,323,216
1000 Total Assets 4,710,989 19,306,958 24,017,947
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
1997 Deferred Qutflow Related to Pension Plan 54,580 31,305 85,885
1998 Deferred Outflow Related to OPEB 7,271 3517 10,788
1500 Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 61,851 34,822 96,673
LIABILITIES
2010 Accounts Pavable 167,535 793,099 960,634
2020 Wages and Salaries Payable 130,859 64,843 195,702
2050 Deposits Payable 155,438 212,795 368,233
2060 Retainage Payable - 35,939 35,939
2090 Due to Others 9,811 - 9,811
2140 Accrued Interest Payable 4,204 45,631 49,835
Noncurrent Liabibties;
2501 Due Within One Year 185,556 296,700 482,256
2502  Due In More Than One Year 62,402 4,204,300 4,266,702
2580 Net Pension Liability 62,728 30,34t 93,069
2585 Net OPEB Liability 77,591 37.530 115,121
2000 Total Liabilities 856,125 5,721,178 6,577,303
DEFERRED INFL.OWS OF RESOURCES
2601 Unearned Revenue 255,745 - 255,745
2602 Deferred Inflow Related to Pension Plan 65,270 34,055 99,325
2500 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 321,015 34,055 355,070
NET POSITION
3200 Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,077,863 8,496,175 10,574,038
Restricted for:
3820 Restricted for Federal or State Funds 22,096 - 22,096
3830 Restricted for Tourism 440,602 - 440,602
3850  Restricted for Capital Acquisition 11,019 - 11,019
3860 Restricted for Debt Service . 63,900 63,900
3890  Restricted for Other Purposes 362,228 - 362,228
3900 Unrestricted 681,892 5,026.472 5,708,364
3000 Total Net Position 5 3,595,700 13,586,547 17.182,247

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Contyol
Codes

CITY OFFALFURRIAS, TEXAS
STATEMENTOF ACTIVITIES
FORTHE YEARENDED DECEMBER 31,2018

Program Revenues

Primary Government:
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
100General Governunent

120Judicial
200Public Safety
300Public Works

4ooHealth and Welfare
500Culture and Recreation
720Interest on Debt

Total Governmental Activities

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:

701 Utility Fund

Total Business-Type Activities

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Pata
Control
Codes

5010
5120
5170
5190
5600
5700
5800
5800

Operating
Charges for Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions
5 570824 § 23970 § 24,511
261,627 324,042 -
1.077.593 9.998 199,570
1,082,599 694493 -
58,187 - S
448,254 74.259 R
10.667 - -
3,509,753 1.126,762 224,081
2.339,386 2,757,686 4,500
2,359,386 2,757,686 4,500
5

5.869.139 s 3884448 8 228,581

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes

General Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Tax
Penally and Interest on Taxes
Grants and Contributions
Miscelianeous Revenue
Investment Earnings
Transfers In (Out)

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Position - Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Primary Govemnment

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
(522,343) 3 - 5 (522.343)
62,415 - 62.415
(868,027) s (868.027)
(388,106) - (388.166)
(58,187) - (58.187)
(373,995) - (373.995)
(10,667) g (10.667)
(2,158910) . (2,158.910)
g 402,800 402.800
5 402,800 402,800
(2,158,910} 402,300 (1,756.110)
652,208 s 652,208
759,337 = 759337
292 811 o 292,811
20,431 s 20431
20,946 = 20.946
104,170 435,869 150.039
6.119 17.381 23.500
623,332 (623,332) -
2,479,355 (560,082) 1,919,273
320,444 (157.282) 163,162
3,338,029 13,774,192 17,112,221
(62,773) {30,363) {93,136}
$ 3,595,700 % 13,586,547 $ 17,182,247

EXHIBITB-1



EXHIBITC-1
CITY OFFALFURRIAS, 1TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31,2018

Data

Total
Control General Other Governmental
Codes Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents b 475306 % 669524 § 1,144,830
1030 Investments - Current 630,642 - 630,642
1050 Taxes Receivable 367,000 - 367,000
1150  Accounts Receivable, Net 110,193 15,550 125,743
1152  Other Receivables 121,850 - 121,850
1300 Due from Other Funds 198,018 67,334 265,352
1390  Due from Others - 30,679 30,679
1000 Total Assets 3 1,903,009 $ 783,087 § 2686006
LIABILITIES
2010 Accounts Payable b3 167,535 § - § 167,335
2020 Wages and Salaries Payable 54,938 - 54,938
2050 Centracts Payable 155,438 - 135,438
2080 Due to Other Funds 200,628 100,519 301,147
2090 Due to Others - 93812 9812
2000 Total Liabilities 578,539 110,331 688,870
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
2601 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 613293 - 613,293
2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 613,293 - 613,293
FUND BALANCES
Restricted Fund Balance
3450  Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction - 22,096 22,096
3460  Tourism - 440,602 440,602
3470  Capital Projects - 11,019 11,019
3490  Other Restricted Fund Balance - 199,039 199,039
Assigned Fund Balance:
3590  Other Assigned Fund Balance 163,189 - 163,189
3600 Unassigned Fund Balance 547,988 - 547,988
3000 Total Fund Balances THLNT7 672,756 1,383,933

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances b 1,903,009 $ 783087 § 268609

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
13
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
RECONCILIATIONOF THEGOVERNMENTALFUNDS BALANCESHEET TOTHE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FORTHE YEARENDEDDECEMBER 31,2018

EXHIBITC-2

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $

The City uses internal service funds to charge the costs of certain activities, such as
self-insurance and printing, to appropriate functions in other governmental funds. The
assets and liabilities of the intemal service funds are included in govemmental
activities in the statement of net assets. The net effect of this consolidation is to
Increase (decrease) net position.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in governmental funds. In addition, long-term liabilities,
including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and, therefore
are not reported as liabilities in the funds. The net effect of including the beginning
balances for capital assets (net of depreciation) and long-term debt in the
governmental activities is to increase (decrease) net position.

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in
the fund financial statements.but they should be shown as increases in capital assets
and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The
net effect of including the 2018 capital outlays and debt principal payments is to
increase (decrease) net position.

Included in the noncurrent assets/(liabilities) is the recognition of the City's net pension
asset/(liabilitiy) required by GASB 68 in the amount of ($62,728), a deferred resource
inflow in the amount of ($65,270), and a deferred resource outflow in the amount of
$54,580. This resulted in an increase/(decrease) in net position by ($73,418).

Included in the noncurrent assets/(liabilities) is the recognition of the City's new
OPEB asset/(liability) required by GASB 75 in the amount of ($77,591), a deferred
resource inflow in the amount of $0, and a deferred resource outflow in the amount of
$7,271. This resulted in an increase/(decrease) in net position by ($70,320).

The 2018 depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation. The net effect
of the current year's depreciation is to decrease net position.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, eliminating interfund transactions,
reclassifying the proceeds of bond sales as an increase in bonds payable, and
recognizing the liabilities associated with maturing long-term debt and interest. The
net effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is to increase (decrease) net
position.

1,383,933

-0-

2,140,620

470,996

(73,418)

(70,320)

(280,909)

24798

Net Position of Governmental Activities

3,595,700

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANDCHANGES INFUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTALFUNDS

FORTHE YEARENDED DECEMBER 31,2018

Data To1tal
Control General Other Governmental
Codes Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Taxes:
5110 Property Taxes 417,667 S - 8 417,667
5120 (General Sales and Use Taxes 759,337 - 759.337
5170  Franchise Tax 218,563 74,246 292,811
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes 20,431 - 20,431
5200 Licenses and Permits 23,97 - 23.971
5300 Intergovermmental Revenue and Grants - 224,082 224,082
5400 Charges for Services 771,200 - 771,200
5510 Fines 320,124 11,699 331,823
5610 Investment Earnings 2,953 3,166 6,119
5640 Contributions & Donations 13,900 7,045 20.945
5700 Other Revenue 82,475 8,520 90,995
5020 Total Revenues 2,630,623 328,758 2959381
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
0100  General Government 479,969 10,251 490,220
0120 Judicial 231,484 524 232,008
0200 Public Safety 823,109 132,977 936,086
0300 Public Works 992,060 - 992.060
0400 Heaith and Welfare 41,412 - 41.412
0500 Culture and Recreation 306,227 103.251 409 478
Debt Service:
0710  Principal on Debt 120,000 - 120,000
0720 Interest on Debt 10,897 - 10,897
0790  Lease Payments 117,107 - 117.107
Capital OQutlay:
0800 Capital Outlay 147,365 94,406 241,771
6030 Total Expenditures 3,269,630 341,409 3,611,039
1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) (639,007) €12,651) (631,658)
Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property 13,887 - 13,887
7915 TransfersIn 706,710 22,000 728,710
8911 Transfers Out (73,798) (31,580) (105,378)
7956 Insurance Recoveries 7,168 - 7,168
7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 653,967 (9,580} 644,387
1200 Net Change in Fund Balances 14,960 (22,231) (7.27)
0100 Fund Balance - January 1 (Beginning) 696,217 694,987 1,391,204
3000 Fund Balance - December 31 (Ending) 711,177 3 672756 % 1.383.933

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBITC-3
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EXHIBITC-4

CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
RECONCILIATIONOF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
ANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCES TOTHE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FORTHE YEARENDEDDECEMBER 31,2018

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $

The city uses some intemal service funds to charge the costs of certain activities
primarily to the governmental funds. The net income (loss) of these internal service
funds are reported with governmental activities. The net effect of this consolidation 1s to
increase (decrease) the change in net position.

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures 1n
the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and
reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net effect
of removing the 2018 capital outlays and debt principal payments is to increase
(decrease) the change in net position.

The imlementation of the requirements of of GASB 68 required that certain expenditures
be de-expended and recorded as deferred resource outflows. These contributions made
after the measurement date of 12/31/17 caused the change in the ending net position to
increase in the amount of $30,758. Contributions made before the measurement date but
after the previous measurement date were reversed from deferred resource outflows

and recorde as current year expense. This caused a decrease in the change in net
position totaling ($38,155). The City's reported TMRS net pension expense had to be
recorded. The net pension expense increased/(decreased) the change in net position by
($6,048). The result of these changes is to increase/(decrease) the change in net

position by ($13,445)

The imlementation of the requirements of of GASB 75 required that certain expenditures
be de-expended and recorded as deferred resource outflows. These contributions made
after the measurement date of 12/31/17 caused the change in the ending net position to
increase in the amount of $2,292. Contributions made before the measurement date but
after the previous measurement date were reversed from deferred resource outflows

and recorde as current year expense. This caused a decrease in the change in net
position totaling ($2,882). The City's reported TMRS net OPEB expense had to be
recorded. The net pension expense increased/(decreased) the change in net position by
($6,048). The result of these changes is to increase/(decrease) the change in net

position by ($13,445)

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it does not
require the use of current financial resources. The net effect of the current year's
depreciation is to decrease the change in net position.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, adjusting current year revenue to show the
revenue earned from the current vear's tax levy, eliminating interfund transactions,
reclassifying the proceeds of bond sales, and recognizing the liabilities associated with
maturing long-term debt and interest. The net effect of these reclassifications and
recognitions is to increase (decrease) the change in net position.

(7.271)
0-

470,996

(13,443)

(1,547)

(280,909)

24,798

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $

320,444

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-1
CITY OFFALFURRIAS, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2018

Busuess Type

At ities
Utilits
Fund
ASSETS
Cusrent Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 3,377,311
Restricted Assets - Current:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 63,900
Accounts Receivable, Net 426,371
Due from Other Funds 35,796
Due from Others 2.315,242
Inventories 91,163
Total Current Assets 6,309,783
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Capital Assets, Net 12,997,175
Total Noncurrent Assets 12,997,175
Total Assets 19,306,958
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflow Related to Pension Plan 31,305
Deferred Outflow Related to OPEB 157
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources 34,822
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 793,099
Wages and Salaries Payable 64,843
Meter Deposits Pavable 212,795
Retainage Payable 35,939
Accrued Interest Pavable 45,631
Due Within One Year 296,700
Total Current Liabilities 1,449,007
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due In More Than One Year 4,204,300
Net Pension L.iability 30,34]
Net OPEB Liability 37,530
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,272,171
Total Liabilities 5,721,178
DEFERRED INFLOVWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow Related to Pension Plan 34,055
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 34,055
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 8,496,175
Restricted for Debt Service 63,900
Unrestricied 5,026,472

Total Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

13,586,547
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CITY OFFALFURRIAS, TEXAS

EXHIBITD-2

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES INFUNDNET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDEDDECEMBER 31,2018
Business-Type
Activities
Utility
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants $ 4,500
Water Revenue 1,425018
Sewer Revenue 696,292
Gas Revenue 636,376
Other Revenue 45,869
Total Operating Revenues 2,808,055
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 542,811
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 112,678
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 22,092
Other Operating Costs 896,992
Supplies 11,866
Depreciation 669,89
Total Operating Expenses 2,256,335
Operating Income 551,720
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Earnings 17,381
Interest Expense - Nonoperating (103,051)
Total NonOperating Revenue (Expenses} (85,610)
Income Before Transfers 466,050
Nonoperating Transfers [n 44,298
Transfers Out (667,630)
Change in Net Position (157,282)
Total Net Position - January | (Beginning) 13,774,192
Prior Period Adjustment (30,363)

Total Net Position - December 31 (Ending)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS

EXHIBITD-3

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FORTHE YEARENDEDDECEMBER 31,2018
Business-Type
Aclivities
Unility
Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash Received from User Charges S 2.808.035

Cash Payments to Employees for Services (616.671)

Cash Payments for Other Operating Expenses (2.509.249)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating

Activities (317.865)
Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:

Operating Transfer In 44,298

Operating Transfer Out (667.630)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Non-Capital

Financing Activities (623.332)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Acquisition of Capital Assets {1.090,566)

Capital Lease Proceeds 2,431,000

Principal and Interest Paid on Capital Debt (273.051)
Net Cash Provided by Capital and

Related Financing Activitics 1.067.333
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Interest and Dividends on Investients 17,381
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 143,567
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 3.328.007
Prior Period Adjustment (30,363)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year S 3441211
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided By (Used For) Operating Activities:
Operating Income S 551,720
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
To Net Cash Provided by (Used For) Operating Activities:
Depreciation 669,896
Effect of Increases and Decreases in Current
Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease (Increase) in Receivables (2.246.358)

Decrease {Increase) in Interfund Receivables 4,500

Decrease (Increase) in Inventories 1.582

Increase (Decrease} in Pensio/OPEB Outflows 39.783

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Pavables 661,976

Increase (Decrease) in Pension/OPEB Intlows (964)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for)

Operating Activities S (31786

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The combined financial statements of the Citv of Falfurrias, Texas (the City) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental and financial reporting principles.

The City of Falfurrias, Texas (the City) was incorporated in 1948 and operates under a General Law Type-
A Government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter. The services include public
safety (police and fire), public works, sanitation, health and social services, culture-recreation, public
improvements, and general administrative services. Other services include utilities (water, gas, sewer
services, and solid waste collection).

The accounting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles applicable to
governments as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), The following is
a summary of the significant policies.

A. GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANICAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities are government-wide financial statements.
The government-wide financial statements provide information about the activities of the City as a whole
presenting all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and changes
in net position of the City. These statements are prepared using, the accrual basis of accounting. Separate
rows and columns are used in the govemment-wide statements to distinguish between govemmental
activities and business-type activities, with a total column for the primary government.

B. SCOPE OF REPORTING ENTITY

In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was
made by applying the criteria set forth in GAAP. The basic — but not the only - criterion for including a
potential component unit within the reporting entity is the goveming body’s ability to exercise oversight
responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. Other
manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the selection
of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to significantly influence operations,
and accountability for fiscal matters. A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is
the scope of public service. Application of this criterion involves considering whether the activity benefits
the government and/or its citizens, of whether the activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries
of the govemment and is generally available to its citizens. A third criterion used to evaluate potential
component units for inclusion or exclusion is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of
whether the government is able to exercise oversight responsibilities.

Based on these criteria, the City has no component units. Additionally, the City is not a component unit of
any other reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statement.
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

C. FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fund financial statements are used to present more detailed information about the City’s most significant
funds. Separate fund financial statements are prepared for govemmental funds and proprietary funds. The
City has no fiduciary funds. The governmental and proprietary fund financial statements place an emphasis
on major funds. Those funds which are determined to be major funds are presented in separate columns,
with all nonmajor governmental funds being aggregated and displayed in a single column. Interfund

receivable and payable balances and transfers between funds have been eliminated in the fund financial
statements.

The City has reported the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The Generat Fund is the main operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account for
all financial resources not accounted for in other funds. All general tax revenues and other receipts that are
not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other funds are accounted for in this fund. General

operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds
are paid from the General Fund.

The City has reported the following major proprietary funds:

Utility Fund - The Utility Fund is used to account for the provision of water and sewer services to the
residents of the City. Activities of the fund include administration, operations and maintenance of the water
and sewer system and billing and collection activities. The fund also accounts for the accumulation of
resources for, and the pavment of, long-term debt principal and interest for water and sewer debt. All costs
are finance through charges to utility customers with rates reviewed regularly and adjusted if necessary, to
ensure integrity of the funds.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type(s):

Special Revenue Funds — The City accounts for resousces restricted to, or designated for, specific purposes
by the City or a grantor in a special revenue fund. Most Federal and some State financial assistance 1s
accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund and sometimes unused balances must be retumed to the grantor
at the close of specified project periods.

Capital Projects Fund ~ This fund is a capital projects fund. It is used to account for the proceeds from

long-term debt financing and revenues and expenditures related to authorized construction and other capital
asset acquisitions.

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus refers to whether a particular type of transaction will be recorded in the financial
statements. The economic resources measurement focus recognizes all resources and obligations and the
changes in them. The current financial resources measurement focus recognizes only current resources and
obligations and transactions affecting current resources and obligations. Basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis
of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.
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Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from
exchange and exchange like transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements specific to the
class of nonexchange transactions. For the govemnment-wide financial statements prepared on the accrual
basis, property tax revenues are recognized in the period for which the taxes are levied.

Fund financial statements — government funds

The fund financial statements for the government funds are prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. This measurement focus affects the
accounting and reporting treatment of capital assets and long-term liabilities. The capital assets and long-
term liabilities of the govemmental activities are not recorded on the balance sheet of the fund financial
statements of the governmental funds. Transactions for the purchase of assets, the issuance of debt, and the
payment of debt principal are reflected in the govemnmental funds, but they are reported on the statement
of revenues, expenditures. and changes in fund balances as capital outlay and debt service principal
expenditures and proceeds from debt.

The modified accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they
become measurable and available and recognizes expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund
liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt, which is recognized when
due. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafier to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. All revenues of the
City are considered susceptible to accrual except for revenue from delinquent property taxes receivable,
revenue from fines and revenue from fines.

While the City expects all taxes on real property to ultimately be collectible, the bulk of delinquent property
taxes receivable at the end of the year are not anticipated to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used
to pay liabilities of the current period. Therefore, revenue from delinquent property taxes receivable is not
recognized in the fund financial statements until they are considered available when collected during the
current period or within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.

Fines receivable but not past due at the end of the fiscal year may be subsequently reduced when the
offender attends a defensive driving course, provides proof of insurance, has the offense dismissed by the
municipal court, or serves jail time. Current fines receivable thus does not meet the measurability criterion
required to be susceptible to accrual. A significant portion of past due fines receivable is not anticipated to
be collected enough to meet the criterion that the revenue be considered available.

Fund financia! statements — proprietary funds

The fund financial statements for the proprietary funds are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and are similar to those often found in the private
sector.  All assets, liabilities, equities, revenues, expenses, and payments relating to the govemment’s
business activities are accounted for through proprietary funds. The measurement focus is on determination
of operating income, financial position, changes in net position and cash flows. Operating expenses include
costs of services as well as materials, contracts, personnel, and depreciation. All revenues and expenses
not meeting these definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
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E. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.
Encumbrance accounting under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation is not utilized
by the City’s accounting system, Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of
fund balances and do not constitute expenditure or liabilities until the commitments are honored by

inclusion in the subsequent vear's budget. There are no significant encumbrances outstanding at December
31, 2018.

F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the statements of cash flows represent demand accounts and
petty cash. Certificates of deposit, U.S. government debt securities, money market funds, and investments

in local government investment pools are recorded as investments and are not treated as cash or cash
equivalents.

G. INVESTMENTS

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act, to adopt,
implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy must be written; primarily emphasize safety
of principal and liquidity; address investment diversification, yield, and maturity and the quality and
capability of investment management; and include a list of the types of authorized investments in which the
investing entity’s funds may be invested; and the maximum allowable stated maturity of any individual
investment owned by the entity.

The Public Funds Investment Act (Act) requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures
in this area conducted as a part of the audit of the general purpose financial statements disclosed that in the

areas of investment practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies, the City
adhered to the requirements of the Act.

The Act determines the types of investments which are allowable for the City. These include, with certain
restrictions, (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas, (2)
certificates of deposit, (3) certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase
agreements, (6) bankers acceptances, {7) mutual bonds, (8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment
contracts, and (10} common trust funds.

H. PREPAID ITEMS

Prepaid balances are for payments made by the City in the current year to provide services occurring in the
subsequent fiscal year, and the reserve for prepaid items has been recorded to signify that a portion of fund
balance is not available for other subsequent expenditures.

1. RECEIVABLES

Amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund receivables and payvables are eliminated in
the government-wide governmental and business-type activities columns of the statement of net position,
except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are
presented as internal balances.
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Within the governmental fund financial statements, long-term advances and long-term receivables are
reflected as unspendable fund balance indicating they do not constitute available expendable resources.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. The allowance for
uncollectibles is management’s best estimate of the amount of credit losses bascd on account delinquencies
and histoncal write-off expense.

Utility revenue is recorded when eamed. Customers are billed monthly. The estimated value of services
provided but unbilled has been included in the financial statements and has been accrued in the proprietary
funds to record the estimated amount of revenues earned but not billed as of the end of the fiscal year. The
estimate is based on the pro rata number of days in the billing cycle before and after the fiscal year end.

J. INVENTORY

Inventories in the Proprietary Funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first in/first
out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund type inventories are recorded as expenditures when
consumed rather than when purchased.

K. INTER-FUND RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLES

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

L. TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN FUNDS

Legally authorized transfers are treated as inter-fund transfers and are included in the results of operations
of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds.

M. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements
and in the fund financial statements for proprietary funds. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated assets are valued at their fair
market value on the date donated. Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses. Renewals and
betterments are capitalized. Interest has not been capitalized during the construction period on capital assets.
Assets capitalized have an original cost of $5,000 or more and over three years of useful life. Deprecation
has been calculated on each class of depreciable property using the straight-line method. Estimated useful
lives are as follows;

Assets Useful Lives

Machinery and equipment 3-15 years

Vehicles 2-15 years

Improvements 20 years

Infrastructure 30 years

Buildings 50 years
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N. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the Citv’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits

Vacation leave may be accumulated at the rate of up to 80 hours for each continuous year of employment
for full-time employees with between 1 and 5 vears of service. Employees with between 6 and 14 years of
service, up to 120 hours accumulate each year. For emplovees with more than 15 years of service, up to
160 hours accumulate each year. Employees, with approval, may carry over forty hours of unused vacation
leave. The City allows emplovees to accumulate sick leave at a rate of 8 hours per month on continuous
employment for full-time employees with a limit of thirty days that may be carried over. Employees are
not paid for accumulated sick leave, thercfore. no liability is accrued. In proprietary fund types,
accumulated unpaid compensated absences are accrued when incurred. The accruals are reported as
liabilities and expenses for the year incurred. The liability in the governmental fund types is recorded only
in the Govemment-wide Financial Statements. The amount expected to be paid from current resources is
not considered to be significant. Applicable liabilities in the governmental wide net assets and in the
proprietary fund have been established to reflect these liabilities.

0. LONG-TERM DEBT

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary’ fund financial statements, long-term debt and
other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-
type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Gains or losses on proprietary fund refunding
and on the government-wide financial statements are reported as deferred inflows or outflows and are
amortized over the term of the lesser of the new bonds or the refunded bonds using the effective interest
method. Bond issuance costs are recognized as expenditures/expenses when incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while

discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Bond issuance costs are shown as debt
service expenditures.

P. FUND EQUITY

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds financial statements, net position is
classified in the following categories:

Ner assets invested in capital assets

This category represents the net camying value of all capital assets, reduced by the outstanding balances of
long-term debt that arc attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets.

Restricted
The restricted component of net position represents restricted assets reduced by liabilities related to those
assets. This category represents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws

or regulations of other govemments and restrictions imposed by faw through constitutional provisions or
cnabling legislation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Unrestricted
This category is the “residual” component of net position. It consists of net position that does not meet the
definition of “restricted” or “net invested in capital assets.”

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified in the following categories:

The nonspendable fund balance includes the portion of net resources that cannot be spent because of their
form or becanse they must be maintained intact. Resources not in spendable form include inventories and
prepaid items, long-term advances, long-term receivable, and nonfinancial assets held for resale.

The restricted fund balance includes net resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated
by constitution, extemal resource providers (creditors, grantors, contributors), laws and regulations of other
govemments, or through enabling legislation. Some resources are spendable but are legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact. Such resources include the principal of an endowment. The enabling
legislation authorizes the City to assess, levy, charge or otherwise mandate payment of resources from
extemal resource providers; those resources can be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the
legislation.

The committed fund balance includes spendable net resources that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints that are imposed by the highest level of decision-making authority, City Council.
City Council is required to take formal action by ordinance or resolution to establish, modify, or rescind a
fund balance commitment. Committed funds incorporate contractual obligations constraints to the extent
that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfving those contractual
requirements. Those constraints remain binding unless removed or changed in the same manner employed
to previously commit those resources.

The assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific
purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. Constraints imposed on the use of assigned amounts can
be removed with no formal Council action. The residual fund balance that is not Restricted or Committed
in governmental funds except the General Fund is assigned.

The wunassigned fund balance represents the spendable net resources that have not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes. The General Fund is the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance.

Q. SPENDING PRIORITIZATION IS USING AVAILABLE RESOURCES

When both restricted resources and other resources (i.e., committed, assigned, and unassighed) can be used
for the same purpose, the City budget considers restricted to be spent first.

When committed, assigned, and unassigned resources can be used for the same purpose, the flow
assumption in the City budget is to spend in the sequence of committed resources first, assigned second,
and unassigned last.

The City has in the past and plans to continue in the future its conservative approach to monitoring

expenditures to ensure that fund balances stay strong at the 25% general fund policy level. The General
Fund will need to re-build with future revenues.
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By a majority vote in a scheduled meeting of the City Council, the Council may commit fund balances and
it may modify or rescind these commitments. The Council may also delegate authority to persons or parties
to assign fund balances in specific circumstances or funds.

R. PROGRAM REVENUES AND INDIRECT EXPENSES

The government-wide statement of activities is presented in a format that identifies the net cost of the City’s
individual functions. The expenses of each function i1s reduced by the functions program revenues.
Program revenues are revenues which derive directly from the program itself and include charges for
services, program-specific operating grants and contributions, and program specific capital grants and
contributions. Some governmental functions such as administration and finance are in essence indirect
expenses of other functions. Govemments are not required to allocate those indirect expenses to other
functions, but if they do, indirect expenses should be presented in a separate column from direct expenses.
The City has chosen not to allocate those indirect expenses.

S. OPERATING AND NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

The City’s policy in distinguwishing proprietary fund operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses
follows the guidance for distinguishing types of cash flows. Transactions for capital and related financing

activities, noncapital financing activities, or investing activities are normally not treated as operating
IEVENUES Or EXpenses.

T. ESTIMATES

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principle requires the
use of management’s estimates. Items for which estimates are necessary include the amount of receivables
which may not be collectible, inventory obsolescence, service lines and salvage values of depreciable assets.
Estimates also include the likelihood of loss and potential loss amount from contingencies such as litigation.

U. CUSTOMER METER DEPOSITS

The Utility Fund requires a deposit when new service is initiated for a customer. These deposits are usually
refunded after being held for more than one year. An active program is undenway to timely reimburse all
old deposits. Interest is paid on the deposits, but no accrual is made. Interest paid on these deposits is
accounted for on the cash basis, as the amounts are immaterial to the financial statements as a whole.

V. DUE TO VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT

Beginning July, 1986, the Utility Fund included on each monthly utility bill a $1 charge for voluntary
donations to the Falfurrias Emergency Medical Service and the Volunteer Fire Department. This was
increased to $2 in 2011. Effective October 1, 1995, the voluntary donations were limited to the Volunteer
Fire Department. It is strictly a voluntary charge and can be ignored by the customer. All funds received
each month as donations are then remitted the following month to the Volunteer Fire Department.
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

W. NET PENSION LIABILITY

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of the
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from TMRS’s Fiduciary Net
Position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan
contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee. which 1s when
contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

X IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW STANDARDS

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s
plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis, For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Y. DEFFERED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expenses/expenditures) until then. The City has two items that qualify for reporting in this
category, one is related to the City’s net pension liability and the other is related to the City’s net QPEB
liability and both are reported on the government-wide statements of net position. This deferred outflow
includes City contributions to the retirement systems contributed subsequent to the measurement date of
the net pension liability and net OPEB liability, as of December 31, 2018, the City’s deferred outflows
totaled $96.673.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

The City has two items that qualify for reporting in this category, one of which are reported on the
govemnment wide statements of net position and the other reported on the balance sheet at the governmental
fund level.

Govemment-wide statements

One is the deferred inflow related to the net position liability and net OPEB liability and is the difference
between expected and actual economic experiences and changes in actual eamings. This is amortized over
subsequent accounting periods as determined by the actuary. As of December 31, 2018, the City’s deferred
inflow totaled $99,325. The City’s deferred inflow related to the unavailable revenues associated with
property taxes totaled $255,743,

Governmental fund leve!
This deferred inflow is property taxes received prior to the applicable budget year. As of December 31,
2018, the City’s deferred inflow totaled $613,293.
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Z; RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain debt proceeds of the City’s enterprise funds, as well as certain resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable
bond covenants, In addition, certain resources form fines set aside according to state law for municipal
court technology fund and building security are classified as restricted assets.

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Data

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America for all governmental funds except for the capital projects funds which adopt
project — length budgets. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during
the year for the General as well as for the Utility fund.

Although accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the budgetary
schedules be reported for the General Fund and all major special revenue funds with a legally adopted
budget, the City of Falfurrias only prepares legally adopted annual budgets for the General Fund and Utility
Fund. Therefore, the Special Revenue Funds (all non-major) do not present budgetary comparison
schedules in this Annual Financial and Compliance Report.

Unused appropriations for the entirc above annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of each vear. The

budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts as revised during the
vear.

Budgetary data for Capital Project Funds are budgeted over the life of the respective projects and not on an
annual basis. Therefore, this data is not presented in the accompanying combined financial statements. The
City does not have capital project funds at vear end. Revisions that alter total appropriations must be

approved by City Council. Therefore, the legal level of budgetary responsibility is at the total expenditures
level.

Citv Management establishes the amount of estimated revenues and other resources available for
appropriation for the succeeding budget year. City Management submits to the City Council a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal vear commencing the following October 1. The operating fund includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. Public hearings are conducted to City Hall to
obtain taxpaver comments. Prior to October 1, the budget is adopted by the City Council

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. Dunng the year, several
supplementary appropriations were necessary.

Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Assets of Individual Funds
At December 31, 2018, no deficit fund balance reported.

Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, expenditures in the General Fund exceeded budgeted
appropriations in two functional categories for Public Safety $10,739. and Capital Outlay $120.365. Total
expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures in the current year by $12,115.
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NOTE 3 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT

At December 31, 2018, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits (cash, certificates of deposit, and interest-
bearing savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $4,586,041 and the bank balance was
$5,318,092. The City’s cash deposits at December 31, 2018 and during the period ended December 31,
2018, were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City’s agent bank in
the City’s name.

A. Investments

As of December 31, 2018, the City the foillowing investments:

Weighted
Average
Amortized Maturity Fair Value Standard &
Governmental Activities Cost (Days) Measurement Poor's Rating_
General Fund
Certificates of Deposits $ 630,642 Level 2
Total Governmental Activities $ 630,642

The City was in compliance with the Investment Act.

Fair Value Measurements - The City categorizes its investments measured at fair value within the hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. Investments valued at fair value are categorized
based on inputs to valuation techniques as follows:

Level I input - Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market that an entity has the
ability to access.

Level 2 input - Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and inputs that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 input-Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability which are typically based upon the City's
own assumptions as there is little, if any, related market activity.

Hierarchy- The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to
Level 3 inputs.

Inputs - If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the fair
value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.

The City's investments are debt securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy and are valued

using a computerized pricing service utilizing a yield-based matrix system to arrive at an estimated market
value. The City does not have any Level 1 or Level 3 investments.
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Interest Rate Risk: To limit the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
investments; the City requires that the investments shall be monitored by using specific identification.

Credit Risk - Texas statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) obligations of the United States or its agencies
and instrumentalities; (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities: (3)
collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a Federal agency or instrumentality of the United
States, the underlying security for which is guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of the United States:
(4) other obligations, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed, insured by, or
backed by the full faith and credit of, this State or the United States or their respective agencies and
instrumentalities; and (5) obligations of states, agencies. counties, cities and other political subdivisions of
any state (rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than "A"

or its equivalent). As of December 31, 2018, the City’s investments were secured by U.S. Government
Securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk: To limit the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a govemment’s
investment in a single issuer, the investment portfolio shall be diversified in terms of investment instruments
maturity scheduling, and financial institutions. To further limit the risk all of the City investments are
collateralized by U.S. Government Securities.

Custodial Credit Risk: State law requires governmental entities to contract with financial institutions in
which funds will be deposited to secure those deposits with insurance or pledged securities with a fair value
equaling or exceeding the amount on deposit at the end of each business day. The pledged securitics must
be in the name of the govemnmental entity and held by the entity or its agent. Since the City complies with
this law, it has no custodial nisk for deposits

NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES
Primary Government

Receivables at vear-end for the government's individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Nonmajor
General Enterprise Governmental
Fuand Fund Funds Total
Receivables
Taxes $ 591,933 b - $ - 3 591,935
Accounts 169.258 581.060 15,550 765.868
Other Receivables 121.850 - - 121.850
Due from other governments ) ) 30,679 30.679
Gross Receivables 883,043 581.060 46,229 1.510.332
Less: Allowance
for uncellectible-taxes (224.935) - - (224.935)
Less: Allowance
for uncollectible-accounts (59.065) (154.690) - (213.755)
Net Total Receiables $ 599.043 3 426,371 $ 46,229 $ 1071642

Revenues of the Utility Fund are reported net of uncollectible amounts. Total uncollectible amounts related
to revenues of the current period are $154,690.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied on October 1 bases on assessed value of property as of January 1, for all real and
personal property located in the City in conformity with Subtitle I, Texas Property Tax Code. Assessed
values are an approximation of market values. Taxes are due on receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent
if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in which imposed. On January 31 of each vear,
atax lien attaches to property to secure the pavment of all taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed.
Property tax revenues are considered available (1) when they become due or past due and receivable within
the current period and (2) when they are expected to be collected during a 60-day period after the close of
the fiscal year.

Appraised values are established by the Brooks County Appraisal Board, assessed at 100% of appraised
value, approved by the Brooks County Appraisal Review Board and certified by the Chief Appraiser.
Responsibility for the billing and collection of the City’s taxes has been transferred to Brooks County as a
cost-cutting measure in consolidating government functions.

The City operates under the laws of the State of Texas as a Type A General Law City, and is limited to a
maximum annual rate of 1-1/2% of taxable property of the City. Neither the state law nor the city charter
limits the proportion of this total tax rate that may be applied to debt service. The 2017 tax rate was
$.490257 on assessed value of $94,551,020 and was distributed to the General Fund. The 2018 tax rate is
$.478407 on an assessed value of $97,359,919 with tax revenue of $255,745 which is deferred to 2019.

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General Fund are based upon historical experience
in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed and written
off, but the City is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory authority from
the Texas Legislature.

NOTE S INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Primary Government

Interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2018 were as follows:

Governinental Funds - Receivable Fund

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Other Governmental Funds $ 128,018
General Fund General Fund 70,000
Other Governimental Funds Other Governmenial Funds 30,776
Other Governmental Funds General Fund 36,558
$ 263352
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Proprietary Funds - Receivable Fund

Receivable Fund Pavahble Fund Amount
Utility Fund General Fund $ 35796
3 35,79

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from time lag between the date that (1) interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the

accounting system. and (3) payments between funds are made. All amounts due are scheduled to be repaid
within one vear.

Transfers to and from other funds during the vear ended December 31, 2018, consisted of the following!

Transfer From Transfers To Amount Reason

Utility Fund General Fund $ 667,630 Supplement other fund sources
Other Governmental Funds General Fund 31,580 Supplement other fund sources
General Fund Other Governmental Funds 22.000 Supplement other fund sources
General Fund General Fund 7,500 Supplement other fund sources
Total $ 728710

Transfers are used primarily to 1) move unassigned and unrestricted fund revenues to other funds to finance
variance special projects, to finance payroll, and the purchase of capital assets.
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NOTE 6 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2018 was as follows:

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital Assets, being depreciated
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipiment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Municipal Court
Public Safety
Public Works
Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation

Beginning Ending
Balances Additions Deletions Balances
12,200 - . 12,200
4,500 19,174 - 23,674
16,700 19,174 - 35,874
1,044,979 137,963 - 1,182,944
1,887,365 84,632 (228,500) 1,743,497
1,637,750 - - 1,637,750
4,570,094 222,597 (228,500) 4,564,192
(543,086) {48,822) - (591,908)
(1,418,298) (148,181 220,170 (1,346,309)
(251,902) (83,906) - (335,808)
(2,213,286) (280,909) 220,170 (2,274,023)
2,356,808 (58,312) (8,330) 2,290,167
$ 2,373,508 $ (39,138) § (8,330 $ 2,326,041
$ 65,653
20,877
73,557
89470
3,735
27617
$ 280,909

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities
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Beginning Ending
Balances Additions Deletions Balances
Business-type Activities
Capital Assets, not being depreciated
Land 148.222 - - 148,222
Construction in Progress 262,913 718,789 - 981,702
Total capital assets. not being depreciated 411.135 718,789 - 1.129.924
Capital Assets, being depreciated
Buildings and Improvements 26.259 - - 26.259
Machinery and Equipment 1,905.514 327.114 (20.089) 2.212.599
Infrastructure 22.086.616 43.888 - 22,130,504
Total capital assets. being depreciated 24,018,389 371,062 (20.089) 24,369,362
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements {19.073) (898) - (19.971)
Machinery and Equipment {1.506.539) (92.198) 20,089 (1.578.648)
Infrastructure (10.326.692) (576.800) - (10.903,492)
Total accumulated depreciation (11.852.304) (669,896) 20,089 (12.502.111)
Total capital assets. being depreciated. net 12.166.086 (298.834) (0 11.867.251
Business-type activities capital assets. net $ 12.577.221 § 419955 § (0) _$ 12997175

Depreciation expense was charged to business-tvpe activity functions as follows:

Business-Type Activities:

Buildings and Improvements $ 898
Machinery and Equipment 92,198
Infrastructure 376,800

Total Depreciation Expensc - Business-Type Activitics $ 669,896
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS

NOTE 7 LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term activity for the vear ended December 31, 2018, was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Certificates of Obligation
Capital Leases
Total bonds and leases payable

Other long-term liabilities
Accumulated compensated absences
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability

Total other long-term liabilities

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
2013 Refunding Bonds

Capital Leases
Total bonds and leases pay able

Other long-term liabilities

Accumulated compensated absences

Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability
Total other long-term liabilities

Total Business-Type Activities

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Omne Year

$ 245000 3§ - % 120000 $ 125000 § 125,000

240,066 - 117,107 122,959 60,556

485,066 - 237,107 247,959 185,556

- 75,921 - 75,921 -

182,255 - 119,527 62,728 -

- 77,591 - 77,591 -

182,255 153,512 119,527 216,240 -

$ 667,321 $ 153512 3 356634 § 464,199 § 185,556

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

$ 2,240,000 $ - $ 170,000 $ 2,070,000 £ 175,000

- 2,431,000 - 2,431,000 121,700

2,240,000 2,431,000 170,000 4,501,000 296,700

- 41,468 - 41,468 .

88,157 - 57,816 30,341 -

- 37,530 - 37,530 -

88,157 78,598 57.816 109,339 -

$ 2,328,157 $2,509,998 $ 227816 $ 4,610,339 $ 296,700
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Primary Government
Govemmental Activities

$600,000, 2014 Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments
ranging from $115,000 to $125,000 from March 1, 2015 through 2019:

interest 1.730% $ 125.000
Total Bond Obligations 125,000
Less: Current Portion of Bond Obligations (125,000)
Bond Obligations, Net of Current Portion h) -

Debt service requirements to maturity for Bond Obligations are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year Ending December 31 Prinicpal Interest
2019 $ 125,000 $ 1081
Total $ 125,000 $ 1081

Business-Tyvpe Activities

$2,935,000, 2013 Limited Tax Refunding Bonds due mn annual
installments ranging from $150,000 to $240,000 from April 1, 2014

through 2028: interest at 3.600% $ 2.070,000
Total Bond Obligations 2,070,000
Less: Current Portion of Bond Obligation (175.000)
Bonds Obligations, Net of Current Portion $ 1,895,000

Debt service requirements to maturity for Bonds Payable in Business-Type Activities are as follows:
Business-Type Activities

Year Ending December 31 Prinicpal Interest
2019 $ 175,000 $ 71,370
2020 180,000 64,980
2021 190,000 58,320
2022 195,000 51,390
2023 200,000 44,280
2024-2028 1,130,000 104,400
Total $ 2,070,000 $ 394,740
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Capital Lease Obligations

Governmental Activities

Capital lease obligations payable at December 31, 2018, are as follows:

$121,096, capital lease payable to Government Capital Corporation dated
June 17, 2015 through March 1, 2020 for a Lighting Project. Lease payments

are due annually in the amount of $26,443 beginning March 1, 2016,
including interest at 3.322% secured by Ad Valorem Taxes.

$132,850, capital lease payable to Government Capital Corporation dated

June 17, 2015 through March 1, 2020 for an Air Sweeper. Lease payments
are due annually in the amount of $29,009 beginning March 1, 2016,
including interest at 3.322% secured by Ad Valorem Taxes.

$57,314, capital lease payable to Government Capital Corporation dated
September 18, 2013 through March 1, 2020 for a Silverado. Lease payments

are due annually in the amount of $9,266 beginning March 1, 2014,
including interest at 3.721% secured by Ad Valorem Taxes.

Capital Leases

Less; Current Portion of Capital Leases

Capital Leases, Net of Current Portion

Debt service requirements to maturity for Capital Leases are as follows:

Year Ended Total
December 31, Prinicpal Interest Requirements
2019 $ 60,556 $ 4,161 $ 64,717
2020 62,403 2,115 64,518
Total $ 122,959 $ 6,276 $ 129,235
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Business-Type Activities

$2,431.000 capital lease payable to Branch Banking and Trust Company dated
Scptember 12, 2018 through September 1, 2031 for Utility Improvements, Lease
payments are due quarterly beginning September 1, 2019 in amounts ranging from

$47.623 to $180,484 including interest at 3.640% secured by Utility Equipment. $2431,000
Capital Leases 2,431,000
Less: Current Portion of Capital Leases (121.700)
Capital Leases, Net of Current Portion $ 2,309,300

Debt service requirements to maturity for Capital Leases arc as follows:

Year Ended Total
December 31, Prinicpal Interest Requirements
2019 $ 121,700 $ 107,045 $ 228745
2020 111,300 82,583 193,883
2021 124,200 78.361 202.561
2022 137,800 73.655 211.455
2023 152,500 68.443 220,943
2024-2028 1,014,500 243,764 1.258.264
Thereafter 769,000 43,321 812,321
Total $ 2.431,000 $ 697170 $ 3.128.171

NOTE 8 PENSION PLAN

A Plan Description

The City of Falfurrias participates as one of 887 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory. hybnd
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is
an agency created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act. Subtitle G,
Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for
municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and
management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustecs, Although the Govemor. with the advice
and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas.
TMRS's defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Intemal Revenue

Code. TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be
obtained at www tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS.
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B. Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the goveming
body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee's contributions, with interest, and the
City-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may choose to
receive their retirement benefit in one of seven pavment options. Members may also choose to receive a
portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36 monthly
payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member's deposits and interest.

Plan Provisions:

The plan provisions are adopted by the goveming body of the City of Falfurrias, within the options available
in the state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Plan Year 2017 Plan Year 2018
Employee Deposit Rate 5.00% 5.00%
Matching Ratio (City to Employee) 1.5t1 15t01
Years Required for Vesting 5 5
Service Retirement Eligibility (Expressed as Age
{ Years of Service) 60/3,0/25 60/5,0/25
Updated Service Credit 0% Repeating, Transfers 0% Repeating, Transfers
Annmtv Increase (to Refirees) 0% of CPI Repeating 0% of CPI Repeating

Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2017 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 21
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 36
Active employees 45

C. Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 3%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross earnings, and
the City matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of
the City. Under the state law goveming TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually
by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits eamed by employees during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the City of Falfurrias were required to contribute 5.00% of their annual gross earnings during
the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City of Falfurrias were 3.31% and 3.29% in calendar years
2017 and 2018, respectively. The City's contributions to TMRS for the year ended December 31, 2018,
were $30.842 and were equal to the required contnbutions,
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D. Net Pension Liability

The City's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the Total Pension
Liability (TPL) uscd to calculate the Net Pension Liability was detcrmined by an actuarial valuation as of
that date.

Actuarial assumptions:

The Total Pension Liabilitv in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per vear
Overall Payroll Growth 3.0% per vear
Investment Rate of Retum 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Salan increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and
beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinet RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, with Blue
Collar male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a
fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants.
the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with
males rates muitiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3-year set-forward for both
males and females. In addition, a 3% minimum mortality rate is applied to reflect the impairment for
younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB
to account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience of
TMRS over the four-year period from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014, Theyv were adopted in
2015 and first used in December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation. The post-retirement mortality assumption
for healthy annuitants and Annuity Purchase Rate (APRs) are based on the Mortality Experience
Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011, and dated December 31, 2013. In conjunction with these
changes first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, the System adopted the Entry Age Normal actuarnial
cost method and a one-time change to the amortization policy. Plan assets are managed on a total return
basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of income, in erder to satisfy
the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of retumn on pension plan investments was determined using a building block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of retum (expected retums, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. In determining their best estimate ofa
recommended investment return assumption under the various altermative asset allocation portfolios. GRS
focused on the area between (1) arithmetic mean (aggressive) without an adjustment for time (conservative)
and (2) the geometric mean (conservative) with an adjustment for time (aggressive).
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The target allocation and best estimate of real rates of retum for each major asset class in fiscal year 2018
are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class ']'a_rgiAllocation Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Retumn (Arithmretic)
Domestic Equity 17.5% 4.30%
International Equity 17.5% 6.10%
Core Fixed Income 10.0% 1.00%
Non-Core Fued Income 20.0% 3.39%
Real Retum 10.0% 3.78%
Real Estate 10.0% 4.44%0
Absolute Return 10.0% 31.56%
Private Equity 5.0% 7.75%

Total 100.0%
Discount Rate:

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the rates
specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability:

Increase(Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Posttion Liability
(a) ) (a)-(b)

Balance at 12/31/2016 $ 2,550,307 $ 2,279,895 $ 270,412
Changes for the year:

Service Cost 128,166 - 128,166

Interest 169,372 - 169,372

Change m benefit terms - - -

Diff between expected/actual experience - - -

Changes of assumptions (18,696) - (18,696}

Contributions - employer - 56,635 (56,635)

Contributions - employee - 85,558 (85,538)

Net investement mcome - 315,713 (315,713)

Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions (210,337) (210.337) -
Administrative expenses - (1,638) 1,638
Other charges - (83) 83
Net changes 68,505 245 848 (177,343)

Balance at 12/31/17 $ 2618812 $ 2,525,743 $ 93,069
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as
well as what the City's net pension liability would be if 1t were calculated using a discount rate that is |-
percentage-point lower (5.75%) or 1 -percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease in 1% Increase m
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Citv's net pension liabiity £ 391,155 b} 93,069 $ (158,469)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position:

Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately issued
TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Intemet at www.tmrs.com.

E. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $64,837.

At December 31, 2018, the Citv reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Defemred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual economic experience
(net of current year amortization} $ 19,449 % 33,417
Changes in actuarial assumptions 15,594 -
Difference between projecied and actual investient earings
(net of current year anortization) - 65,908
Contributions subsequent to the measurcment date 50,842 -
Total $ 85,883 3 99,325

$50,842 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the
year ended December 31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended December 31

2019 £ 598
2020 (1,458)
2021 (36,428)
2022 (32,36
2023 -
Thereafter -

43




r— ™ m o ee

CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 9 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Texas Municipal Retirement System (“TMRS”) administers a defined benefit group-term life insurance
plan known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (“SBDF”). This is a voluntary program in which
participating member cities may elect, by ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage for their
active members, including or not including retirees. The death benefit for active employees provides a -
lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the
employee’s actual eamings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death). The death benefit for
retirees is considered an other post-employment benefit (“OPEB”) and is a fixed amount of $7,500. Asthe
SDBF covers both active and retiree participants, with no segregation of assets, the SDBF is considered to
be an unfunded OPEB plan (i.¢. no assets are accumulated).

The member city contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual
actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding
policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit
payments for the upcoming year. The intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance during employee’s
entire careers.

Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2017 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 16
Inactive employ ¢es entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 6
Active emplovees 45
Total 67
—_——
Contributions

Employees for the City of Falfurrias were required to contribute 0.00% of their annual gross earnings during
the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City were 0.25% and 0.22% in calendar year 2017 and 2018,
respectively. The City’s contributions to TMRS for the year ended December 31, 2018 were $3,400 and
were equal to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liability

The City's Net OPEB Liability was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the Total OPEB Liability used
to calculate the Net OPEB Liability was determined by an actuanial valuation as of that date.
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Actuarial assumptions:

The Total OPEB Liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuanial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% peryear
Overall Payroll Growth 3.50% 1o 10.5% per vear - includng inflation
Discount rate* 331%

Retiree's share of bencfit related costs $0

*The discount rate was based on the Fidelitv Index's *20-Year Municipal GO A4 Index " rate as of December 31,
2017.

Administrative Expenses - All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust and accounted
for under reporting requirements under GASB Statement No. 68

Mortality rates — service retirees - RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustments with
male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully generational
basis with scale BB.

Mortality rates — disabled retirecs — RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with
male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% with a 3-year set-forward for both
males and females. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB to account for future
mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.

Discount Rate:

The discount rate used to measure the Total OPEB Liability was 3.31%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the rates
specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the OPEB plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive emplovees. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of retun on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the Total OPEB Liability.
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Total OPEB Liability:
Increase
(Decrease)
Total OPEB
Balance at 12/31/2016 $ 97,412
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 5,647
Interest 3,776

Change m benefit terms 5
Diff between expected/actual experience -
Changes of assumptons 8,970
Contributions - emplover -
Contributions - employee -
Net nvestement mcome -
Benefit payments, mchidmg refunds of

employee contributions (684)
Admmistrative expenses -
Other charges -

Net changes 17,709

Balance at 12/31/17 5 115,121

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 3.31%, as
well as what the Citv's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is |
percentage point lower (2.31%) or 1 percentage point higher (4. 31%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease in 1% Increase m
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(2.31%) (3.31%) (4.31%)
City's total OPEB liability $ 137,838 $ 115,121 $ 97,171

OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutfiows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEBs

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense in the amount of $11,005.

'T!.ﬂ!\
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At December 31, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEBs from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual econonic experience
(net of cument year anwortization) $ - 5 -
Changes in actuarial assumptions 7,388 -
Difference between projected and actual investment eamings
{net of current vear anwrtization) -
Contributions subsequent to the measurenent date 3,400 -
Total $ 10,788 $ -

$3.400 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEBs resuiting from contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability for the year ended
December 31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
OPEBs will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended December 31:

2019 5 1,582
2020 1,582
2021 1,582
2022 1,582
2023 1,060
Thereafter -

NOTE 10 HEALTH CARE COVERAGE

During the year ended December 31, 2018, emplovees of the City were covered by a health insurance plan
(the Plan). The City paid premiums of $677 per month per employee to the Plan. Employces. at their
option, authorized payroll withholdings to pay premiums for dependents. All premiums were paid to a
licensed insurer. The Plan was authorized by Article 3.51-2, Texas Insurance Code and was documented
bwv contractual agreement.

The contract between the City and the licensed insurer is renewable October 1, 2019, and terms of coverage
and premium costs are included in the contractual provisions.

Latest financial statements for the Texas Municipal League are available for the vear ended December 31,
2018, have been filed with the Texas State Board of Insurance, Austin, Texas, and are public records.




T M mr

CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 11 RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Falfurrias is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2018, the City
obtained general liability coverage at a cost that is considered to be economically justifiable by joining
together with other governmental entities in the State as a member of the Texas Municipal League
Intergovernmental Risk Pool (“TML”). TML is a self-funded pool operating as a common risk management
and insurance program. The City pays an annual premium to TML for its above insurance coverage. The
agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums
and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels; however,
each category of coverage has its own level of reinsurance. The City continues to carry commercial
insurance for other risks of loss. There were no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage
in the past fiscal year and settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of
the past three fiscal years.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Proprietary fund accounts receivable are concentrated within the geographic service area of the utility
system, which is within the City. Those receivables are not concentrated within any individually significant
customers. The City requires a deposit from each utility customer prior to establishing service. The net
amount of proprietary fund accounts receivable at year end after deducting the allowance for doubtful
accounts and after including estimated amounts for service provided but not yet billed at year end was
$426,371. Utility customer deposits held at year end totaled $212,795.

NOTE 12 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Federal and State Assisted Grants Programs

Federal and State Funds — The City has received federal and state funds as grants and other financial
assistance. These funds must be spent only as allowed by the grant and other federal or state requirements.
Also, the City must follow various laws and regulations when they receive these funds. If the City does
not abide by these laws and regulations or does not spend the monies, as allowed under the grant
agreements, the City may be required to retumn the grant monies, or portion thereof, to the granting agencies.
The contingent liability, if any, that may be due to the federal and state agencies, cannot be readily
determined.

NOTE 13 CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COST

The City does not maintain any landfill facilities, and therefore no accrual for these care costs 1S necessary.

NOTE 14 FUND DEFICITS

At December 3!, 2018, no deficit fund balances are reported.
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

During fiscal year 2018, the City adopted GASB statement No. 75 for Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Adoption of GASB 75 required a pnor period
adjustment to report the effect of GASB 75 retroactively. A prior period adjustment of ($62,773) was made
to the government wide statements which resulted in a decrcase in net position and fund balance.
Additionally, a prior period adjustment of ($30.363) was made to the enterprise fund which resulted in a
decrease in net position and fund balance.

NOTE 16 FUND BALANCE

Some fund balance restrictions and commitments have been grouped together under the heading of other
or various purposes. Those amounts are detailed below:

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
Fund Balance
Restricted Fund Balance:
Federal of State Funds Grant Restriction 3 - g 22,096 $ 22,096
Tourism - 440,602 440,602
Capiltal Projects - 1,019 11,019
Other Restricted 199,039 199,039
Assigned Fund Balance: - - -
Other Assigned 163,189 - 163,189
Unassigned 547,988 - 547,988
Total Fund Balance $ 7177 3 672,756 $ 1,383,933
NOTE 17 EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Council has evaluated subsequent events through June 23, 2021, the date which the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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EXHIBITG-1
CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS

SCHEDULEOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERALFUND
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018

Data Actual Variance With
Control Amounts Final Budget
Codes Eudgete i mours (GAAPBASIS) Positive or
Original Final (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes:
5110 Property Taxes $ 425,000 $ 425,000 $ 417667 $ (7,333)
5120 General Sales and LIse Taxes 700,000 700,000 759337 59,337
5170 Franchise Tax 206,000 206,000 218,565 12,565
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes 24,000 24,000 20,431 (3,569)
5200 Licenses and Permits 24,000 24,000 23,971 29)
5400 Charges for Services 1,090,000 1,017,000 771,200 (245.800)
5510 Fines 400,000 350,000 320,124 (29,876)
5610 Investment Earnings 1,000 1,000 2,953 1,953
5640 Contributions & Donations - - 13,900 13,900
5700 Other Revenue 42,410 41,910 82,475 40,565
5020 Total Revenues 2912410 2,738910 2,630,623 (158,287)
EXPENDITURES:
Current;
010¢ General Government 582,600 508,475 479,969 28,506
0120 Judicial 282,000 270,600 231,484 39,116
0200 Public Safety 794,860 812,370 823,109 (10,739)
0300 Public Works 1,082,190 1,024,100 992,060 32,040
0400 Health and Welfare 69,970 42,000 41412 588
0500 Culture and Recreation 392,750 344,200 306.227 37,973
Debt Service:
0710 Principal on Debt 120,000 120,000 120,000 -
0720 Interest on Debt 15,893 15,893 10,897 4,996
0790 Lease Payments 117,107 117,107 117,107 -
Capital Outlay:
0800 Capital Outlay 26,000 27,000 147,365 (120,365)
6030 Total Expenditures 3,483,370 3,281,745 3,269,630 12,115
1100 Excess (Deficiencvof Revenues Over {Under) (570.960) (492,835) (639,007) (146,172)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property - - 13,887 13,887
7915 TransfersIn 104,580 104,580 706,710 602,130
8911 Transfers Qut - (7.000) (73,798) (66,798)
7956 Insurance Recoveries - - 7.168 7,168
2080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 104,580 97,580 653,967 556,387
1200 Net Change (466,380} (395,255) 14.960 410,215
0100 Fund Balance - January 1 (Beginning) 696,217 696,217 696,217 -
3000 Fund Balance - December 31 (Ending) 5 229837 § 300,962 % 711,177 % 410,215
A0



CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS EXHIBITG-2
SCHEDULEOF CHANGESINNET PENSION LIABILITY ANDRELATEDRATIOS
TEXASMUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

FORTHE YEAR FNDEDDECEMBER 31,2018

A. Total Pension Liability

FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015
Plan Year2017 Plan Year 2016 PlanYear2015 Plan Year2014

Service Cost

Interest {on the Total Pension Liability)}

Changes of Benefit Terms

Difference between Expected and Actual Experience

Changes of Assumptions

Net Change in Total Pension Liability
Total Pensien Liabiliny - Beginning

Total Pension Lisbility - Ending
B. Total Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Emplovee

Net Investment Income

Administrative Expense
Other

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending

C. Net Pension Liability

D. Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total
Pension Liability

E. Cavered Payroll

128,166 S 130,560 § 103,115 § 84.934
169,372 160,345 158,345 146,675
- - 40,358 -
(18.696) 46,273 (80,836} (9.065)
. R 64,323 -
Benefit Payments. Including Refunds of Employee Contributions (210.337) (194.156) {96,324) (114.234)
68,505 § 143022 8 188,961 S 108,310
2,550,307 2,407,285 2,218,324 2,110,014
2618812 8 2,530.307 § 2407285 S 2,218,324
56,635 S 31964 S 30,560 S 34,015
85,558 85.000 84,244 81.368
315,713 147.934 3.203 117,495
Benefit Payments, Inciuding Refunds of Employee Contributions (210,337) (194.136) (96,324) (114,234)
(1,638) (1,672) (L,931) (1.226}
(83) (90) “7) (1on
245848 S 88,980 $ 19,635 S 117,317
2,279,895 2,190.915 2,171,280 2,053,963
2,525,743 5 2.279.895 § 2190915 8 2,171,280
93,069 S 270412 % 216,370 8 47.044
96.43% 89 .40%: 91.01% 97 88%
L715,159 S 1.700.002 8 1,684,883 § 1,627.354
544% 15.91% 12.84% 2.89%

F. INet Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

Note: GASB 68. Paragraph 46. a and b requires that the data in this schedule be presented for the time period covered by the measurement

date rather than the governmental entity’s current fiscal year.

Note: Only four years of data are presented in accordance with GASBS =68, paragraph 138. "The mformation for all periods for the §0-vear
schedules that are required to be presented as required supplementary information may not be available initially. In these cases. during the

transition period, that information should be presented for as many vears as are available. The schedules should not include information that
is not measured in accordance with the requirements of this Statement."
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EXHIBITG-3

CITY OF FALFURRIAS TEXAS
SCHEDULEOF CONTRIBUTIONS
TEXASMUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM
FOR THEFISCAL YEAR 2018
2018 2017 2016 2015
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 50,842 S 60,887 $ 56,384 § 36,239
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined (50,842} (60,887) (56,384) (36,239)
Contnbutions
Contnbution Deficiency (Excess) § o 7 - § -

Covered Payroll $ 1,545,347 § 1,710,305 § 1,700,602 $ 1,684 883
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 3.29% 3.56% 3.32% 2.15%

Note: GASB 68, Paragraph 81 requires that the data in this schedule be presented as of the governmental entity's respective fiscal years as
opposed to the time periods covered by the measurement dates ending December 31 for the respective fiscal years.

Note: In accordance with GASB 68, Paragraph 138, the years of data presented this reporting period are those for which data is available.
"The information for all periods for the 10-year schedules that are required to be presented as required supplementary information may not be
available initialiy. In these cases, during the transition period, that information should be presented for 8s many years as are available. The
schedules should not include information that is not measured in accordance with the requirements of this Statement.”



CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Valuation Date:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December
31, and become effective in January 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Inflation

Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Other Information:

Entry Age Normal

Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

24 years

10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor

2.5%

3.5% to 10.5% including inflation

6.75%

Experience-based table based on rates that are specific to the City's plan

of benefits. Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an
experience study of the period 2010-2014.

RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with
male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and
projected on a fully generational basis with scale BB.

There were no benefit changes during the year.
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EXHIBITG-4

CITY OFFALFURRIAS TEXAS
SCHEDULEOF CHANGESIN THE TOTAL OPEBLIABILITY ANDRELATEDRATIOS
TEXASMUNICIPAL RETIREMENT 8YSTEM
FORTHE YEARENDEDDECEMBER 31,2018

FY 2018
Plan Year 2017

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost b3 5,647

Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 3776

Changes of Benefit Terms -

Difference between Expected and Actual Experience -

Changes of Assumptions 8,970

Benefit Payments* (684)

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 17,709

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 97,412

Total OPEB Liability - Ending 8 115,121
Covered Payroll S 1,711,159
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 6.73%

*The Supplemental Death Benefit Fund is considered to be an unfunded OPEB plan under GASB 75. Because of this benefit
payments are treated as being equal to the emptoyer's yearly contributions for retirees.

Note: GASB Codification, Vol. 2, P52.139 states that the information on this schedule should be determined as of the
measurement date of the plan.

As required by GASB 75, this schedule will be built prospectively as the information becomes available untit 10 years of
information is presented.



CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of
December 31, and become effective in January 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 17 years

Asset Valuation Method 10 Year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor

inflation 2.5%

Salary Increases 3.5% to 10.5% including inflation

investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age Experience-based table based on rates that are specific to the City's
Mortality RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with

male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and

Other Information: There were no benefit changes during the year.
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMTARY INFORMATION

Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the
Untied States of America for all governmental funds except for the capital projects funds which adopt
project — length budgets. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during
the year for the General and for the Utility funds.

Although accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that budgetary
schedules be reported for the General Fund and all funds with a legaily adopted budget, the City of
Falfurrias, Texas only prepares legally adopted annual budgets for the General Fund and Utility Fund.
Therefore, special revenue funds (all non-major) do not present budgetary comparison schedules in this
Annual Financial Report.

Unused appropriations for ali of the above annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of each year. The
budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts during the year.

Budgetary data for Capital Project Funds are budgeted over the life of the respective project and not on an
annual basis. Therefore, this data is not presented in the accompanying combined financial statements.

Revisions that alter total appropriations must be approved by the City Council. Therefore, the legal level
of budgetary responsibility is at the total expenditures level.

City Management establishes the amount of estimated revenues and other resources available for
appropriation for the succeeding budget year. City Management submits to the City Council a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating fund includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. Public hearings are conducted to City Hall to
obtain taxpayers comments. Prior to October 1, the budget is adopted by the City Council.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level.

Expenditures Over Appropriations
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, expenditures in the General Fund exceeded budgeted

appropriations in two functional categories for Public Safety $10,739, and Capital Outlay $120,365. Total
expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures in the current year by $12,115.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES



CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAIOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2018

203 215 220 230
pata Homeland Gifts Hotel Motel
SERE Security and Occupancy Tax JAG
Codes §2 Bequests Fund Grant
ASSETS
1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 29460 % 20410 % 41139 % 1,504
1150 Accounts Receivable, Net g - 15,530 -
1300 Due from Other Funds - 395 52,748 -
1390 Due trom Others 14,417 R . .
1000 Total Assets $ 43877 & 20805 % 479688 % 1,504
LIABILITIES
2080 Due te Other Funds b 34,027 % 3,180 % 39086 % 5
2090 Due to Others 9812 - s -
2000 Total Liabilities 43,839 3,180 39,086 5
FUND BALANCES
Restricted Fund Balance:
3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 38 = - 1,499
3460 Tourism g - 440,602 =
3470 Capital Acquisiion and Contractural Obligation - - - -
3490 Other Restricted Fund Balance - 17,625 - -
3000 Total Fund Balances 38 17,625 440,602 1,499
4000  Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 43877 $ 20805 % 479688 % b,504
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EXHIBITH-1(Cont'd)

250 260 265 270 275 284 286 290
Law Enforemnt Federal Police FEMA
Serizure Training Forfeiture Impound Secunty CDBG Grant Hazard Technology
Fund Grant Fund Fund Fund 77217122 Mitigation Fund
$ 53020 % 1,452 P % 49441 § 53361 $ 2826 % 16262 § 19,289
5322 19 - 4,659 689 - - 3,502
- - - - - - 16,262 -
$ 58342 % 147 2 % 54100 § 54050 % 2826 % 32524 % 22,791
$ 4,659 % - - 3 1,000 3 - 3 -3 16262 § 2,300
4,659 - - 1,000 - - 16,262 2,300
& 1,471 - - - 1826 16,262 -
53,683 - 0 53,100 34,050 - - 20,491
53,683 1471 90 53,100 54,050 2,826 16,262 20,491
3 58342 % 1471 % % 54,100 % 54050 3% 2826 % 32524 $ 22,791
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2018

Total 602 Total
Data Nonmajor Certificate Nonmajor
(Rl Special of Obligation  Governmental
L) Revenue Funds  Series 2014 Funds
ASSETS
1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 658,505 § 11019 % 669,524
1150  Accounts Receivable, Net 15,550 - 15,550
1300 Due from Other Funds 67,334 - 67,334
1390 Due from Others 0679 - 30,619
1000 Total Assets $ 772,068 § 11,019 § 783,087
LIABILITIES
2080 Due to Other Funds $ 100,519 % - 3 100,519
2090 Due to Others 9,812 - 9812
2000 Total Liabilities 110,331 - 110,331
FUND BALANCES
Restricted Fund Balance:
3250 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 22,096 - 22,09
3260 Tourism 440,602 - 440,602
3270 Capital Acquisiion and Contractural Obligation - 11,019 11,019
3290 Other Restricted Fund Balance 199,039 - 199,039
3600 Total Fund Balances 661,737 11,019 612,756
4000 Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 3 772,068 $ 11019 $ 783,087
59
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUNDBALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS3
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018

203 215 220 230

Data Homeland Gifts Hote! Motel
Control Security and Occupancy Tax JAG
Codes #2 Bequests Fund Granl

REVENLUES:

Taxes:

5170 Franchise Tax § - 3 - % 74246 $ 5
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 199,570 - - -
5510 Fines 5 - - -
5610 Investment Earnings - 111 2,166 -
5640 Contributions & Donations - 7045 - -
5700 Other Revenue - - - -
5020 Total Revenues 199,570 7156 76412 -

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
0100 General Government - 2,001 - -
0120 Judicial 5 - - -
0200 Public Safety 124,329 - - -
0500 Culture and Recreation - - 103,25) -
Capital Outlay:
0800 Capital Outlay 75,232 5 5 -
6030 Total Expenditures 199,361 2,001 103,251 -
1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 9 5,155 (26,839) -
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
7915 Transfers In - - - -
8911 Transfers Out = = - -
7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - g -
1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 9 5,155 (26,839 -
0100 Fund Balance - January | (Beginning) 29 12470 467 441 1,499
3000 Fund Balance - December 31 (Ending) $ 38 % 17625 § 440,002 § 1,499
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EXHIBIT H-2 (Contd)

250 260 265 270 275 284 286 290
Law Enforemnt Federal Police FEMA
Seizure Training Forfeiture Impound Security CDBG Grant Hazard Technology
Fund Grant Fund Fund Fund #7217122 Mitigation Fund
b - -3 - o - % - 3 - 3 -
- - - - - 8,250 16,262 -
- 1,436 - 6,345 1,674 - - 2,244
251 6 - 271 267 - - 94
8,520 - - - - - - -
8,771 1,442 - 6,616 1,941 8,250 16,262 2,338
, % . " 8,250 S .
g = 2 g 524 P z e
5,563 - - 3085 - B - .
- - - - - 19,174 - -
3,563 - - 3,085 524 27424 - -
3,208 1,442 - 3,531 1,417 (19,174) 16,262 2,338
- - - - - 22,000 - -
- - - (31,580) - - - -
- - - (31,580) - 22,000 - -
3,208 1,442 - (28,045} 1,417 2,826 16,262 2,338
50,475 29 0 81,149 52,633 - - 18,153
5 53683 § 1,471 $ ] 53,100 54050 3 2826 % 16262 % 20,491
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANDCHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FORTHE YEARENDEDDECEMBER 31,2018

Total 602 Total

Data Nonmajor Certificate Nonmajor
Control Special of Obligation ~ Govermumental
Codes Revenue Funds  Series 2014 Funds

REVENUES:

Taxes:

5170 Franchise Tax % 74246 % - 3 74,246
5300 Intergovemmental Revenue and Grants 224,082 - 224082
5510 Fines 11,699 - 11,699
5610 Investment Earnings 3,166 - 3,166
3640 Contribwtions & Donations 7,045 - 7045
5700 Other Revenue 8,520 - 8,520
5020 Total Revenues 328,758 - 328,758

EXPENDITURES:

Curent:
0100 General Government 10,251 - 10,251
0120 Judicial 524 - 524
0200 Public Safety 132,977 - 132,977
0500 Culture and Recreation 103,251 - 103,251
Capital Outlay:
0800 Capital Outlay 94,406 - 94,406
6030 Total Expenditures 341,409 - 341,409
1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) (12,6313 R {12,651)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
7915 Transfersin 22,000 - 22,000
8911 Transfers Out (31,580) - (31,580)
T080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (9,580) - (9,580)
1200 Net Change in Fund Balance (22,231 - (2223
0100 Fund Balance - January 1 (Beginning) 683,968 11,019 694,987
3000 Fund Balance - December 31 (Ending} $ 661,737 § 11019 $ 672,736

EXHIBITH-2
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Raul Hernandez & Company, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
5402 Holly Rd., Suite 102
Corpus Christi, Texas 78411

Office (361)980-0482 Fax (361)980-1002

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
Citv of Falfurrias. Texas
Falfurrtas, Texas 78355

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Falfurrias, Texas, as of and for the year ended December
31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively compnse City of Falfurmas, Texas's basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon June 23, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Falfurrias, Texas’s internal
control over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Falfurrias, Texas’s intemal control. Accordingly. we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City' of Falfurrias, Texas's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purposed described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be matenal weaknesses or significant deficiencies and
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. However, as described
in the accompanving schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control
that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal conirol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as item 2018-001, 2018-002, and 2018-003 to be material weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, i internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness. vet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2018-001, 2018-002, and
2018-003 to be significant deficiencies,
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Falfurrias, Texas’s financial statements arc frce
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain prov isions of laws, regulations, contracts.
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However. providing an opinion on comphance w ith those provisions was not an objective
of our audit. and accordingly. we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed nstances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are
described in the accompanyving schedule of findings and questioned costs as item(s) 2018-001, 2018-002, and 2018-
003

City of Falfurrias, Texas’s Response to Findings

City of Falfurrias, Texas’s response to the findings identified in our audit 1s described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. City of Falfurrias. Texas's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly. we express no opinion on it

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the cffectivencss of the cntity s intemal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed m accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity s intemal contro! and compliance. Accordingly. this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

4 %mmm/ez & C’om/a'afry, 7 &

Corpus Christi, Texas
June 23, 2021
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Summary of Auditor's Results
1. Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

One or more material weaknesses identified? X Yes No

One or more significant deficiencies identified? X Yes  None Reported

Noncompliance matenal to financial
statements noted? ~_Yes X No

2. Federal Awards — N/A
Internal control over major programs:
One or more material weaknesses identified? ~ Yes X No

One or more significant deficiencies identified that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes _X None Reported

Tyvpe of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
(CFR) Part 200? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CEDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
N/A
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $750.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No
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CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

B. Financial Statement Findings

Finding No. 2018-001

Critenia:

Condition:

Cause:

Effect:

Context:

Recommendation(s):

Management Response:

All transaction tvpes occurring in the course of busincss should be timely and coded
properly in the general ledger. Preparation of year-end adjusting journal entries,
reconciliations, reviews and other general ledger tests for reasonableness and agreement
to underlying journals, and third parties should be performed in readiness for the monthly
reports to the City Council, and preparation of the City’s annual financial statements.

The general ledger required many audit adjustments and reclassifications to both the
current and prior period balances. Preparation of the year-end adjusting journal entries,
schedules, and reconciliation of several significant areas were not complete. This resulted
in additional time and effort on our part during the course of the audit. Finding is a repeat
from prior fiscal year.

The City has not established a formal policies and procedures over vear-end closing and
monthly account analysis.

Management assessments and financial decisions, and intemal and extemal financial
reporting may be inaccurate because of an improperly maintained general ledger.

During the course of the audit, there were various general ledger accounts that required
adjustments.

The City should review their procedures for proper coding and timely recording of
transactions at the end of each month and at year-end.

The City has hired a fee accountant CPA to help with the preparation of General Ledgers

and Bank Reconciliations. The City will review procedures for proper coding and timely
recording of transactions at the end of each month and at vear-end.
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Finding No. 2018-002

Criteria:

Condition:

Cause:

Effect:
Context:

Recommendation:

Management Response:

CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

The City is required to maintain policies and procedures to track an assct’s cost,
depreciation and the disposal of assets.

The City has not prepared written policies for accounting of fixed asset additions and
deletions. During the audit, we noted that the procedures to accurately account for current
vear additions and deletions were not adequate. We had to perform an extended analysis
of the detail ledgers searching for many fixed asset additions which management
inadvertently omitted. The fixed asset records were updated to account for these additions
during the audit.

Management did not exercise due care in accurately accounting for fixed asset additions
and deletions during the fiscal year.

Some capital assets may not be accurately identified and recorded.

Current year additions and deletions for fixed assets were not accounted for at year-end.
The City should develop fixed asset accounting policies and enhance its procedures to
accurately track current vear fixed asset additions and deletions. Management should
coordinate with the fixed asset management company to ensure that all current year
additions and deletions have been recorded on the City’s fixed asset records.

The City has hired a fee accountant CPA and will develop fixed asset accounting policies

and enhance procedures to accurately track current year fixed asset additions and
deletions.
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Finding No. 2018-003
Critena:

Condition:

Cause:

Effect:

Context:

Reconunendation:

Management Response:

CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Joumal entries should be reviewed by someone other than the preparer.

In conducting the audit, we noted numerous posting errors. Significant quantitics of audit
journal entries were needed to correct posting errors. Finding 1s a repeat from prior fiscal
year.

The policy implemented for the review of journal entries was not followed

The City understated and overstated multiple account balances. Reports provided to City
Council were inaccurate.

During the course of the andit, there were vanous general ledger accounts that required
adjustments.

The City should follow its journal entry review policy and procedures. A responsible
official should review and approve all journal entries posted to the ledgers

The City has hired a fee accountant CPA to help with the preparation of General Ledgers.
The City will review procedures for proper journal entry coding and timely recording of
transactions at the end of each month and at vear-end.

C Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

NONE
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REFERENCE NUMBER

CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Reference Number: (2017-1)

Reference Number: (2017-2)

Reference Number: (2017-3)

Reference Number: (2017-4)

Reference Number: (2017-5)

Reference Number: (2017-6)

&9

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR'’S FINDINGS

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations
The City began budget training with the
departments and adopted the fiscal year 2018
budget utilizing the new process. We consider
this finding to be resolved as of December 31,
2018.

State Compliance — Certificate of Interested
Parties

The City revised their purchase policy manual
which provides guidelines and procedures for all
City Purchases. We consider this finding to be
resolved as of December 31, 2018.

Purchase Orders

The City adopted a purchase policy manual
which provides guidelines and procedures for all
City Purchases. We consider this finding to be
resolved as of December 31, 2018.

Account Coding and Journal Entry Approval
See current year finding 2018-003.

Golf Course Collections

The City has implemented procedures to validate
daily deposits. We consider this finding to be
resolved as of December 31, 2018.

Account Reconciliations
See current year finding 2018-001.



CITY OF FALFURRIAS, TEXAS
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Management will undertake the proper steps to maintain accurate financial records, overall intemal control
and timely financial reporting.

The City Manager is the contact person and will oversce corrective action.




